
PRO DEX INC
Form 8-K
March 20, 2006

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 8-K

CURRENT REPORT

PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF
THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

         Date of Report (Date of earliest event reported) January 5, 2006

Pro-Dex, Inc
(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)

Colorado                
(State or other jurisdiction

of incorporation)

0-14942
(Commission
File Number)

84-1261240
(IRS Employer

Identification No.)

Edgar Filing: PRO DEX INC - Form 8-K

1



151 E. Columbine Avenue, Santa Ana, California 92707
(Address of principal executive offices)     (Zip Code)

Registrant's telephone number, including area code 714-241-4411

Not Applicable
(Former name or former address, if changed since last report)

      Check the appropriate box below if the Form 8-K filing is intended to simultaneously satisfy the filing obligation of the registrant under any
of the following provisions (see General Instruction A.2. below):

o Written communications pursuant to Rule 425 under the Securities Act (17 CFR 230.425)
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Item 1.01.       Entry into a Material Definitive Agreement.

On January 5, 2006, Pro-Dex Astromec, Inc., a Nevada corporation (the "Subsidiary"), a wholly-owned subsidiary of Pro-Dex, Inc. (the
"Company"), entered into an Asset Purchase Agreement (the "Asset Purchase Agreement") with Astromec, Inc., a Nevada corporation
("Astromec") whereby the Subsidiary purchased from Astromec substantially all of the assets related to Astromec's fractional horsepower DC
motor development and manufacturing business (the "Assets").  The Subsidiary also assumed certain liabilities of Astromec as defined in the
Asset Purchase Agreement. The Subsidiary was formed under the laws of the State of Nevada on December 27, 2005.  Since the Subsidiary is a
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, the financial investments and transactions of both companies are presented on a consolidated basis. 
M.D. Glover, Inc., a Nevada corporation ("Glover, Inc."), and Malcolm D. Glover, Jr., as principal shareholders of Astromec, and Malcolm D.
Glover, Sr., as sole shareholder of Glover, Inc., are each party to the Asset Purchase Agreement with respect to customary and standard
representations and warranties and indemnity obligations of Astromec.  

The purchase price for the Assets consisted of $2,700,000 in cash payable to Astromec, $100,000 of which shall be held back until July 5, 2006
to cover any adjustments in the purchase price that might be required pursuant to:

a post-closing review of the audited balance sheet of Astromec as of January 5, 2006, and/or• 
any indemnity obligations of Astromec under the Asset Purchase Agreement that arise prior to or on July 5, 2006, if any.• 

The Company paid $1,600,000 of the purchase price out of cash on hand.  The remaining $1,000,000 was paid with borrowings from Wells
Fargo Bank pursuant to the Loan Agreement and Term Note described in more detail below.

Item 2.01.       Completion of Acquisition or Disposition of Assets.

As stated above in Item 1.01, on January 5, 2006, the Subsidiary entered into an Asset Purchase Agreement with Astromec, whereby the
Subsidiary purchased substantially all of the assets related to Astromec's fractional horsepower DC motor development and manufacturing
business.  Also as stated above in Item 1.01, on January 3, 2006, the Company entered into a Purchase and Sale Agreement and Escrow
Instructions with Glover, Inc., whereby pending the close of escrow, the Company shall purchase real property and an industrial building and
related improvements located in Carson City, Nevada.  The details of the acquisition of these assets are described in Item 1.01, which is
incorporated in its entirety by this reference into this Item 2.01.

In determining the purchase price for Astromec, the Company considered the historical and expected earnings and cash flow of Astromec, as
well as the value of companies of a size and in an industry similar to Astromec, comparable transactions, and the market for such companies
generally.  The purchase price represented a premium of approximately $1,985,000 over the $1,018,000 recorded net worth of the assets
assumed from Astromec.  In determining this premium, the Company considered the synergistic and strategic advantages provided by having a
motor manufacturing assets and the value of the goodwill, customer relationships and technology of Astromec.  Goodwill associated with the
Astromec acquisition totaled approximately $1,775,000. 
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In connection with the execution of the Asset Purchase Agreement, on January 3, 2006, the Company entered into a Purchase and Sale
Agreement and Escrow Instructions (the "Real Property Purchase Agreement") with Glover, Inc., whereby pending the close of escrow, the
Company shall purchase 4.4 acres of real property and a 20,000 square foot industrial building and related improvements located in Carson City,
Nevada.  M.D. Glover, Inc., the majority shareholder of Astromec, is the current owner of the property.  The property comprises the facilities
where Astromec has conducted its business prior to the close of the Asset Purchase Agreement, and the Company currently plans to continue
factional horsepower DC motor development and manufacturing operations at the property.  Upon the close of escrow, the Company shall pay
$2,200,000 for the property subject to further analysis.  The Company plans to pay $550,000 of the purchase price out of cash on hand and
anticipates that the remaining $1,650,000 will be paid for out of proceeds from a $1,650,000 ten-year first mortgage financing on the property.

On January 4, 2006, the Company entered into a Term Note and related Loan Agreement (the Term Note and Loan Agreement collectively
referred to as the "Loan Documents") with Wells Fargo Bank, National Association (the "Bank"), whereby the Company borrowed the principal
sum of $1,000,000 (collectively, the "Loan").  The proceeds from the Loan were applied to the purchase price for the Assets of Astromec
described above.  The principal balance of the Loan bears interest either:

at a fluctuating rate per annum equal to the Bank's Prime Rate as in effect from time to time, or• 
at a fixed rate per annum determined by the Bank to be 2.50% above LIBOR in effect on the first day of the applicable fixed rate
term. 

• 

            The fixed rate term may be for a period of either 1, 2, 3 or 6 months as determined by the Company pursuant to the terms of the Loan
Documents.  The Company has chosen that the principal balance initially bear interest based on the 2.50% above LIBOR rate for a fixed rate
term of one month.  The principal amount of the Loan shall be payable on the 4th day of each month in installments of $20,833 commencing
February 4, 2006 and continuing up to and including December 4, 2009, with a final installment consisting of all remaining unpaid principal due
and payable in full on January 4, 2010.  Accrued interest under the Loan shall be payable on the 4th day of each month commencing February 4,
2006.
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Item 9.01.       Financial Statements and Exhibits.

(a)                Financial Statements of Businesses Acquired.

                    The following financial statements of Astromec are included in this report:

 Page

Independent Auditors' Report F-1

Balance Sheet as of December 31, 2005 F-2

Statement of Operations and Accumulated Deficit for the Year Ended December 31, 2005 F-3

Statement of Cash Flows for the Year Ended December 31, 2005 F-4

Notes to Financial Statements F-5-9

(b)                Pro-Forma Financial Statements.

Page

Pro Forma Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheet as of June 30, 2005 F-10

Pro Forma Condensed Consolidated Statement of Operations for
the Year Ended June 30, 2005 F-11

Pro Forma Condensed Consolidated Statement of Operations for
the Six Months Ended December 31, 2005 F-12
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Board of Directors
Astromec, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying balance sheet of Astromec, Inc. as of December 31, 2005, and the related statements of operations and
accumulated deficit, and cash flows for the year then ended.  These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's management. 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.  Those standards require that
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.  An audit
includes consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control over financial reporting. 
Accordingly, we express no such opinion.  An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements.  An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.  We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Astromec, Inc. as of
December 31, 2005, and the results of its operations and cash flows for the year ended December 31, 2005, in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

/s/ Moss Adams LLP

Moss Adams LLP

Los Angeles, California
March 10, 2006

F-1
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ASTROMEC, INC.

BALANCE SHEET

December 31, 2005

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash $                  10,841 
Accounts receivable 340,853 
Inventories, net 567,604 
        Prepaid expenses 8,187 

                TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 927,485 

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, net 88,865 

OTHER ASSETS 1,199 

                TOTAL ASSETS $             1,017,549 
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS'DEFICIT

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable $                245,584 
Accrued expenses 57,661 
        Accrued rent 860,000 

Total current liabilities 1,163,245 

Notes payable to stockholder 3,077,105 
        Accrued interest payable to stockholder 3,796,667 

                  TOTAL LIABILITIES 8,037,017 
S T O C K H O L D E R S'  DEFICIT
CAPITAL CONTRIBUTED
Common stock, $0.20 par value;  5,000,000 shares authorized;
5,000,000 shares issued, 4,900,000 outstanding 980,000 
Preferred stock, $10.00 par value; 100,000 shares authorized;
100,000 shares issued and outstanding 1,000,000 

ACCUMULATED DEFICIT (8,999,468)

                  TOTAL STOCKHOLDERS' DEFICIT (7,019,468)

                  TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' DEFICIT $             1,017,549 
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ASTROMEC, INC.

STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS AND ACCUMULATED DEFICIT

Year Ended December 31, 2005

NET SALES $             2,661,618 

COST OF GOODS SOLD 1,940,675 

          GROSS PROFIT 720,943 

OPERATING EXPENSES 609,987 

          OPERATING INCOME 110,956 

OTHER EXPENSES
     Interest expense 258,315 

           TOTAL OTHER EXPENSES 258,315 
LOSS BEFORE PROVISION FOR INCOME TAX (147,359)

PROVISION FOR INCOME TAX
 -  

NET LOSS (147,359)

ACCUMULATED DEFICIT, BEGINNING OF YEAR (8,852,109)

ACCUMULATED DEFICIT, END OF YEAR $           (8,999,468)
See Notes to Financial Statements
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ASTROMEC, INC.

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Year Ended December 31, 2005

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net loss $              (147,359)
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash
flows from operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 34,829 
                Increase in inventory reserve 91,675 
Decrease (increase) in operating assets and liabilities
Accounts receivable 6,113 
Inventories (164,178)
Prepaid expenses (449)
Accounts payable (12,312)
Accrued expenses (21,777)
Accrued rent 60,000 
Accrued interest payable to stockholder 258,315 

                     NET CASH FLOWS USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES 104,857 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
     Purchase of property and equipment (4,618)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
     Principal repayment on note payable to stockholder (161,665)

NET DECREASE IN CASH (61,426)

CASH, BEGINNING OF YEAR 72,267 

CASH, END OF YEAR $ 10,841 
See Notes to Financial Statements
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ASTROMEC, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1 - Nature of Business

Astromec, Inc. (the Company) was formed in 1967 to design and build electric motors and accessories for military and aerospace customers. The
Company designs and manufactures fractional horsepower, direct current (DC) and alternating current (AC) motors. The Company is located in
Carson City, Nevada and operates as a subsidiary of MD Glover, Inc.

On January 5, 2006, Pro-Dex Astromec, Inc. (the Subsidiary), a wholly-owned subsidiary of Pro-Dex, Inc., entered into an Asset Purchase
Agreement with Astromec, Inc. whereby the Subsidiary purchased substantially all of the assets related to the Company.

Note 2 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Presentation

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principals   generally accepted in the United States of
America.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue on product sales is recognized upon shipment to the customer based on its terms of FOB shipping point, where the risk of loss and title
transfer to the customer.  We record revenue when all of the following exist; persuasive evidence that a sale arrangement exists, delivery of the
product has occurred, the price is fixed or determinable, and payment is reasonably assured.  Revenues include product sales and shipping
revenues, if any, net of estimated returns and discounts based upon management's estimates and the Company's historical experience.  The
Company recognizes shipping cost, incurred as a part of the cost of sales.

Accounts Receivable

Trade receivables are carried at original invoice amount less an estimate made for doubtful accounts based on a review of all outstanding
amounts on a monthly basis.  Management determines the allowance for doubtful accounts by identifying troubled accounts and using historical
experience applied to an aging of accounts.  Trade receivables are written off when deemed uncollectable.  Recoveries of trade receivables
previously written off are offset against the allowance when received. At December 31, 2005, the Company has recorded no allowance for
doubtful accounts.

F-5
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Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost (the first-in, first-out method) or market net of a reserve for slow moving items to reflect a reduced
marketability for the item.  The reserve is calculated by comparing the quantity of the item on hand with our prior 12-month usage history.  If
inventory on hand for a specific part exceeds an estimated 24 months of usage, between 20% and 100% of its value may be included in the
inventory reserve.  Inventories consist of the following at December 31, 2005:

Raw materials and components $533,033 

Work in process 131,245 

Finished goods

     Total 664,278

Reserve for slow moving items (96,674)

     Total inventories, net $567,604
Property and Equipment

Property and Equipment are recorded at cost and consist of the following as of December 31, 2005:

Equipment $820,692 

Leasehold improvements    63,572  

Total cost $884,264  

Accumulated depreciation and amortization (795,399) 

Total property and equipment net $  88,865 
Depreciation and amortization is provided using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets as follows: equipment --
3-10 years; leasehold improvements are amortized over the shorter of the term of the lease or their estimated useful lives. Depreciation and
amortization expense was $34,829 for the year ended December 31, 2005.

Income Taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes using the asset and liability method. Deferred income taxes are recognized based on the differences
between financial statement and income tax bases of assets and liabilities using the enacted statutory rates in effect for the year in which the
differences are expected to reverse.  Valuation allowances are established, when necessary, to reduce deferred tax assets to the amount expected
to be realized.  The provision for income taxes represents the tax payable for the period and the change during the period in deferred tax assets
and liabilities.  The Company's net income or loss is reported by the parent company on a consolidated basis for federal income tax purposes. 
Under the provisions of SFAS No. 109, the Company is required to record a provision for income taxes even if the parent Company does not
allocate such items.
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Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the U.S. requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date
of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those
estimates.

The Company's operations are affected by numerous factors including market acceptance, changes in technologies and new laws and
government regulations and policies. The Company cannot predict what impact, if any, the occurrence of these or other events might have on the
Company's operations. Significant estimates and assumptions made by management are used for, but not limited to, the allowance for doubtful
accounts, the reserve for slow moving or obsolete inventories, the carrying value of long-lived assets, and the recoverability of deferred tax
assets.

Concentration of credit risk

Financial instruments, which can potentially subject the Company to credit risk, consist principally of accounts receivable and cash.  The
Company performs ongoing credit evaluations of its customers and generally does not require collateral from them.  Management does not
believe an allowance for accounts receivable is necessary, as the company has no history of credit losses. The Company places its cash with one
major financial institution in the United States, which is insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) up to $100,000.

Note 3 -Related Party Transactions

The Company engages in transactions with related parties.  Due to the nature of these entities' relationship, the Company's financial position and
operating results as of the year ended December 31, 2005 are different from those that would have been obtained if the entities were
autonomous.

The Company leases its office and warehouse facility from M.D. Glover Inc. for a below market rate rent of $5,000 per month.  The rent is
accrued but not paid by the Company.  At December 31, 2005, $860,000 of accrued rent was payable to M.D. Glover, Inc. 

The Company borrows funds from M.D. Glover Inc. as needed.  At December 31, 2005 approximately $3,077,105 was due to M.D. Glover, Inc.
and was included as note payable to stockholder on the accompanying balance sheet.  The advances bear interest at a rate of 8% to 9% and are
due on demand.  Interest was accrued and unpaid in the amount of $3,796,667 at December 31, 2005.

Note 4 - Commitments and Contingencies

The Company leases its facilities from a related entity (Note 3) under a month-to-month operating lease agreement.  The agreement requires a
minimum monthly lease payment of approximately $5,000 and expires in July 2009, with an option to extend thereafter.  In addition, the
Company also leases equipment under various noncancelable leases for an aggregate monthly rental of approximately $1,000, with expiration
dates through April 2006.  Rent expense for the year ended December 31, 2005 was approximately $61,600, all of which is payable to a related
party. 

At December 31, 2005, future minimum lease payments due under noncancelable operating leases was $30,400, all of which is payable in 2006.
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The Company's manufacture and distribution of certain products involves a risk of legal action, and, from time to time, it is named as defendants
in lawsuits. While the Company's management believes that these matters will not have a material adverse impact on its financial condition, it is
not reasonably possible to estimate the awards or damages, or the range of awards or damages, if any, it might incur in connection with such
litigation.

Note 5 - Income Taxes

For the year ended December 31, 2005, the Company incurred net operating losses and, accordingly, no provision for income taxes has been
recorded.  In addition, no benefit for income taxes has been recorded due to the uncertainty of the realization of any tax assets.  The Company
had net deferred tax assets of approximately $1,952,635 at December 31, 2005 consisting of net operating loss carryforwards and timing
differences related primarily to the deductibility of allowances and accrued expenses.  As of December 31, 2005 the Company provided a 100%
valuation allowance for the net deferred tax assets as management could not determine that it was more likely than not that the benefits of the net
deferred tax assets would be realized.  At December 31, 2005, the Company had approximately $1,070,000 of federal net operating losses. The
net operating loss carryforwards, if not utilized, will begin to expire in 2012.

Note 6 - Shareholders' Equity 

Common Stock

The Company had 5,000,000 shares of common stock authorized with a par value of $0.20 each, amounting in aggregate to $1,000,000.  As of
December 31, 2005 4,900,000 shares were outstanding. 

Preferred Shares

The Company had 100,000 shares of preferred stock authorized with a par value of $10.00 each, amounting in aggregate to $1,000,000.  As of
December 31, 2005 100,000 shares were outstanding. 

Note 7 - Major Customers

The Company had sales to three major customers that represented 66% of total revenues in the year ended December 31, 2005.  Net sales to
these customers in 2005 amounted to $1,762,592. Included in accounts receivable at December 31, 2005 was $263,400 due from these major
customers. 

F-8
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(b) Unaudited Pro Forma Financial Information.

As described in Item 2.01 of this report, effective as of January 5, 2006, Pro-Dex acquired the assets and certain operating liabilities of
Astromec, Inc. and real property, buidings and improvements from the majority shareholder of Astromec, Inc. ("acquisition of Astromec")  The
accompanying unaudited pro forma condensed consolidated balance sheet as of December 31, 2005 and the unaudited pro forma condensed
consolidated statements of operations for the year ended June 30, 2005 and the six month period ended December 31, 2005 are set forth herein to
give effect to the acquisition of Astromec as if the acquisition had been consummated as of December 31, 2005 for the consolidated balance
sheet presentation and at the beginning of each of the periods presented for the purposes of the consolidated statement of operations.

The unaudited pro forma condensed consolidated balance sheet and unaudited pro forma condensed consolidated statements of operations do not
reflect any potential cost savings that may be realized following the acquisition. The pro forma adjustments and assumptions are based on
estimates, evaluations and other data currently available and, in Pro-Dex's opinion, provide a reasonable basis for the fair presentation of the
estimated effects directly attributable to the acquisition and related transactions. The unaudited pro forma condensed consolidated balance sheet
and unaudited pro forma condensed consolidated statements of operations are provided for illustrative purposes only and are not necessarily
indicative of what the consolidated results of operations or financial position would actually have been had the acquisitions occurred at the dates
noted above, nor do they represent a forecast of the consolidated results of operations or financial position for any future period or date.

All information contained herein should be read in conjunction with Pro-Dex's annual report on Form 10-KSB for the year ended June 30, 2005,
its quarterly report on Form 10-QSB for the six months ended December 31, 2005, the financial statements and notes thereto of Astromec, Inc.
included in Item 9.01(a) of this Form 8-K and the notes to the unaudited pro forma financial information included herein. The following
unaudited pro forma financial information is included in this report:
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PRO-DEX, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheet as of

December 31, 2005
(in thousands)

Assets   Pro Forma 
Pro-Dex Astromec Adjustments Totals

Cash $    2,177 $        11 $        (2,150) (c,d) $         38
Accounts receivable 2,643 341 - 2,984
Inventories 3,575 568 - 4,143
Deferred tax assets 525 -- - 525
Prepaids and other current assets 224 8 - 232
Total current assets 9,144 928 (2,150) 7,922
Net fixed assets 1,225 89 2,410(b,d) 3,724
Goodwill 1,110 - 1,775(b) 2,885
Deferred tax assets 481 -- - 481
Other assets 1,557 1 - 1,558
Total other assets 3,148 1 1,775 4,924
Total assets $   13,517 $    1,018 $           2,035 $   16,570

Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity Pro Forma
Pro-Dex Astromec Adjustments Totals

Accounts payable $    855 $        245 $           - $       1,100
Rent payable to stockholder - 860 (860)(a) -
Deferred payable (patent) 71 - - 71
Accrued expenses 531 58  100 (c) 689
Total current liabilities 1,457 1,163 (760) 1,860
Notes payable to stockholder - 3,077 (3,077) (a) -
Interest payable to stockholder - 3,797 (3,797) (a) -
Note(s) payable to bank(s) - - 2,650 (c,d) 2,650
Long-term liabilities (patent deferred payable) 245 - - 245
Total non-current liabilities 245 6,874 (4,224) 2,895
Total liabilities 1,702 8,037 (4,984) 4,755
Stockholders' equity
Common stock 16,046 980 (980) (a) 16,046
Preferred Stock 1,000 (1,000)(a) -
Accumulated deficit  (4,231) (8,999) 8,999 (a) (4,231)
Total stockholders' equity 11,815 (7,019) 7,019 11,815 
Total liabilities and stockholders' equity $  13,517 $   1,018 $           2,035 $  16,570

(a)    Liability and equity not assumed in Asset Purchase Agreement

(b)    Purchase price allocation: $2,700 purchase price in exchange for $1,018 of assets and $303 in assumed liabilities for total consideration of
$3,003, resulting in fair market value adjustment in assets of $210 and $1,775 of goodwill

(c)    Astromec assets purchased for $2,700; financed with $1,600 in cash, $1,000 debt, and $100 seller financing to be paid within six months of
closing, subject to closing balance sheet adjustments.

(d)    Land and building purchased for $2,200; financed with $550 in cash and $1,650 debt
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PRO-DEX, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Pro Forma Condensed Consolidated Statements of Operations

for the Year Ended June 30, 2005
(in thousands, except per share data)

Pro Forma
Pro-Dex Astromec Adjustments Totals

Sales $13,834 $2,517 $           - $16,351
Cost of sales 6,754 1,740 8 (c)      8,502
Gross profit 7,080 777 (8) 7,849
Selling, general & administrative      3,048 243 2 (c)      3,293
Research and development 1,740 368 - 2,108
Total operating expenses 4,788 611 2 5,401
Operating profit 2,292 166 (10) 2,448
Interest income (expense) 21  (266) 87 (a,d) (158)
Other, net 117 -  - 117
Income (loss) before income taxes 2,430 (100) 77 2,407
Income taxes 581 - (9) (b)           572
Net income (loss) $1,849 $(100) $86 $1,835
Earnings Per Share - Basic $0.20 $0.20
Earnings Per Share - Diluted $0.19 $0.19
Shares Outstanding - Basic 9,107 9,107
Shares Outstanding - Diluted         9,651         9,651

(a) Elimination of interest expense due to stockholder note payable not assumed in Asset Purchase Agreement

(b) Pro-Forma Tax benefit of 40% applied to pro-forma adjusted loss plus for pro forma adjustments  (($100)+$77 x 40% = ($9))

(c) Additional depreciation of $30 for the purchased asset allocation and $40 for the building, split 75% to COS and 25% to S, G&A.  Rent
expense of $5/month or $60/year eliminated; split 75% to COS and 25% to S, G&A

(d) Interest on debt used to finance purchases at 6.75% x ($1,000 + $1,650) = $179

F-11

Edgar Filing: PRO DEX INC - Form 8-K

18



PRO-DEX, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Pro Forma Condensed Consolidated Statement of Operations

for the Six Months Ended December 31, 2005
(in thousands, except per share data)

Pro Forma
Pro-Dex Astromec Adjustments Totals

Sales $7,514 $1,408 $         - $8,922
Cost of sales 4,094           1,086 4 (c) 5,184
Gross profit 3,420 322 (4) 3,738
Selling, general & administrative           1,629              158 1 (c) 1,788
Research and development           886 148 -         1,034
Total operating expenses 2,515 306 1 2,822
Operating profit 905               16 (5) 916
Interest income (expense) 43 (127)             38 (a,d) (46)
Other income, net 30                -               -  30  
Income before income taxes 978 (111) 33 900
Income taxes                389               - (31) (b) 358
Net (loss) income $  589 $   (111) $   64 $ 542
Net Income Per Share - Basic $0.06 $0.06
Net Income Per Share - Diluted $0.06 $0.05
Shares Outstanding - Basic 9,474 9,474
Shares Outstanding - Diluted         10,045         10,045

(a) Elimination of interest expense due to stockholder note payable not assumed in Asset Purchase Agreement

(b) Pro-Forma Tax benefit of 40% applied to pro-forma adjusted loss plus for pro forma adjustments  (($111)+$33 x 40% = ($31))

(c) Additional depreciation of $15 for the purchased asset allocation and $20 for the building, split 75% to COS and 25% to S, G&A.  Rent
expense of $5/month eliminated; split 75% to COS and 25% to S, G&A

(d) Interest on debt used to finance purchases at 6.75% x ($1,000 + $1,650) =$179 for the year, $89 for the six month period

F-12
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 (c)      Exhibits.

Number Description
2.1 Asset Purchase Agreement, dated January 5, 2006,

between Pro-Dex Astromec, Inc., Astromec, Inc., M.D.
Glover, Inc., Malcolm D. Glover, Jr., and Malcolm D.
Glover, Sr.(1)

2.2 Purchase and Sale Agreement and Escrow Instructions,
dated January 3, 2006, between Pro-Dex, Inc. and M.D.
Glover, Inc.(1)

10.1 Term Note, dated January 4, 2006, by Pro-Dex, Inc. in
favor of Wells Fargo Bank, National Association.(1)

PRIVATE PLACEMENT FINANCING

On August 26, 2008, the Company entered into a securities purchase
agreement (the �Securities Purchase Agreement�) with certain
accredited investors. Under the Securities Purchase Agreement, the
Company agreed to issue and sell to the Investors 8,389,302 shares of
the Company�s common stock, representing approximately 29.5% of
the issued and outstanding capital stock of the Company on a
fully-diluted basis as of and immediately after consummation of the
transactions contemplated by the Securities Purchase Agreement, for
an aggregate purchase price of approximately $30 million, or $3.576
per share.

As a condition precedent to the private placement transaction
contemplated by the Securities Purchase Agreement, the Company
and the Investors also entered into a registration rights agreement (the
�Registration Rights Agreement�), pursuant to which the Company was
obligated to file a registration statement under the Securities Act of
1933 on Form S-1 covering the resale of the Shares and any other
shares of common stock issued to the Investors under the Securities
Purchase Agreement within 90 days of the closing. The Company also
agreed to make the registration statement effective no later than the
135th day following the closing date or the fifth trading day following
the date on which the Company is notified by the Securities and
Exchange Commission that such registration statement will not be
reviewed or is no longer subject to further review and comments,
whichever date is earlier. The Company later obtained an extension
from the investors providing that the registration agreement should be
effective no later than March 31, 2009, The registration statement was
declared effective on April 7th, 2009. Subsequently, the investors have
waived liquidated damages for the 7 day late period.

In conjunction with the private placement, the Company entered into
separate lock-up agreements (the �Lock-up Agreements�) with each
director and officer of the Company, which precluded such individuals
from selling or otherwise disposing of any shares held by them for a
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period commencing from and after the date of the Lock-up Agreement
and through and including the one year anniversary of the effective
date of a registration statement resulting in all Shares being registered
for resale by the Investors.

In conjunction with the private placement, the Company entered into a
holdback escrow agreement (the �Holdback Escrow Agreement�) with
the Investors and Escrow, LLC, as escrow agent pursuant to which the
Company agreed that an aggregate of $3,150,000 of the Purchase
Price (the �Holdback Amount�) would be deposited on the Closing Date
with the Escrow Agent and be distributed upon the satisfaction of
certain covenants set forth in the Securities Purchase Agreement. As
of September 30, 2009 and December 31, 2008, $105,616 and
$128,130 is left in the escrow account related to investor relations
expenses to be incurred by the Company.

In connection with the Securities Purchase Agreement, on August 26,
2008, the Company also entered into a make good escrow agreement
(the �Make Good Escrow Agreement�) with Bin Li (the �Pledgor�), the
Investors, Brean Murray, Carret & Co., LLC and the Escrow Agent,
pursuant to which the Pledgor agreed to certain �make good� provisions
in the event that the Company does not meet certain income
thresholds for fiscal years 2008, 2009 and/or 2010. Pursuant to the
Make Good Escrow Agreement, the Pledgor placed in escrow
12,583,032 shares of the Company�s common stock held by him, to be
held for the benefit of the Investors. Of these shares, 12,150,000 are
the subject of the Earn-In Agreement between Bin Li and Siping Fang,
described in Note 1, and Bin Li entered into the Make Good Escrow
Agreement on behalf of Siping Fang. For each of the calendar years
2008, 2009 and 2010, 4,194,344 shares will be released to the
Investors or returned to the shareholder, depending on the fulfillment
of specified earnings targets. In the second quarter of 2009, the
Company entered into an amended make good escrow agreement (the
�Amendment Number 1 to the Make Good Escrow Agreement�), in
which the new agreement revised the specified earnings target for
calendar 2009 and 2010. The specified earnings target for calendar
2008 was net income of $10,500,000, for calendar 2009 the new
target, under the amended agreement, is net income of $21, 000,000
and fully diluted earnings per share of $0.668 and for calendar 2010
the new target, under the amended agreement, is net income of $34,
000,000 and fully diluted earnings per share of $1.082. In the event
that shares are required to be released from escrow to the Investors,
such shares will be recorded as a contribution to capital and a
simultaneous issuance of common shares to the Investors. The return
to Bin Li of any of the shares placed in escrow by him on behalf of
Siping Fang is considered to be a separate compensatory arrangement
because Siping Fang is an officer and director of the Company.
Accordingly, if any of the required earnings targets are met and shares
are returned to Bin Li, the Company will recognize compensation cost
at that time equal to the then fair value of the shares returned, up to a
total of 12,150,000 shares. For the year ended December 31, 2008, the
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Company�s net income prior to any compensation charge related to
release of the shares from escrow was $10,762,129 which met the
earnings target for 2008 of net income of $10,500,000. Accordingly,
the Company recorded non-cash compensation of $14,998,974 in the
fourth quarter of 2008 related to the release from escrow to Bin Li of
4,194,344 shares. The Company�s common stock is currently thinly
traded and therefore the Company does not believe that the prices at
which such trades of the Company�s common stock as have occurred
are necessarily reflective of the fair value of the shares released from
escrow as of December 31, 2008. Accordingly, the Company has used
the cash price of $3.576 paid by the Investors in the private placement
to measure the compensation charge to be recorded as of December
31, 2008 as a result of the release of 4,194,344 shares to Bin Li. If the
earnings targets for 2009 and 2010 are met and the Company is thus
required to record additional non-cash compensation charges for the
release of shares from escrow to Bin Li, the Company will make a
determination of the appropriate fair value of those shares at that time.
No compensation charges will be recorded if the earnings targets are
not met and the shares are released from escrow to the Investors.

- 20 -
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CHINA VALVES TECHNOLOGY, INC AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30, 2009
(Unaudited)

Note 12 � Shareholders' equity (Continued)

PRIVATE PLACEMENT FINANCING (CONTINUED)

Based on the Company�s current performance and other factors, the
Company determines that it is probable that the earnings target for
2009 will be achieved. Accordingly, the Company recorded non-cash
compensation charge of $11,279,336 for the nine months ended
September 30, 2009. The Company�s common stock continues to be
thinly traded and therefore the Company has used the cash price of
$3.576 paid by the Investors in the private placement to measure the
compensation charge recorded. The Company will reassess the
probability at each reporting period based on its probability
assessment.

WARRANTS

At the closing of the private placement, as part of the compensation to
the placement agent, the Company issued warrants to the placement
agent to acquire 587,248 shares of common stock. The warrants have
a strike price equal to $4.2912 and a term of 3 years. The shares
underlying the warrants will have registration rights. The warrants
contain a standard anti-dilution provision for stock dividends, stock
splits, stock combination, recapitalization and a change of control
transaction. Because the warrants are denominated in U.S. dollars and
the Company�s functional currency is the Renminbi, they do not meet
the requirements of the accounting standard to be indexed only to the
Company�s stock. Accordingly, they are accounted for at fair value as
derivative liabilities and marked to market each period

The init ial  value of the warrants was determined using the
Cox-Ross-Rubinstein binomial  model  using the fol lowing
assumptions: volatility of 75%; risk free interest rate of 2.64%;
dividend yield of 0% and expected term of 3 years. The volatility of
the Company�s common stock was estimated by management, the risk
free interest rate was based on Treasury Constant Maturity Rates
published by the U.S. Federal Reserve for periods applicable to the
life of the warrants, the dividend yield was based on the Company�s
current and expected dividend policy and the expected term is equal to
the contractual life of the warrants. The value of the warrants was
based on the Company�s common stock price of $3.576 on the date the
warrants were issued. The warrants were valued at $959,196 when
they were issued on August 26, 2008.

On February 18, 2009, the placement agent, Brean Murray, Carret &
Co., LLC performed a cashless exercise of 352,349 warrant shares;
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which were converted to 201,326 shares of common stock. The
Company valued the conversion on exercise date, and recorded
$229,673 loss from changes in fair value of derivative. A total of
$756,012 of carrying value and derivative liability had been
reclassified into equity. As of September 30, 2009, the estimated fair
value of the remaining warrants was $423,410. The Company
recorded a gain of $72,305 and a loss of $72,485 for the three and nine
months ended September 30, 2009, respectively, related to these
warrants. These losses were recorded in the Company�s income
statement.

The Company issued warrants to purchase 50,000 shares at $6.00 per
share, to CCG investors Relation Partners LLC on December 12, 2007
for one year of services to be provided. The initial value of the
warrants was determined using the Cox-Ross-Rubinstein binomial
model using the following assumptions: volatility 75%; risk free
interest rate 3.12%; dividend yield of 0% and expected term of 3
years. The warrants were initially valued at $65,574, all of which was
expensed in 2008. At September 30, 2009, these warrants were valued
at $55,013. The Company recorded a gain of $18,186 and a loss of
$7,985 for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2009,
respectively, related to these warrants. These losses were recorded in
the Company�s income statement.

Warrants issued and outstanding, all of which are exercisable at
September 30, 2009,

Warrants
Outstanding

Weighted
Average
Exercise
Price

Average
Remaining
Contractual

Life
Balance, January 1, 2008 50,000 $  6.00 2.95
         Granted 587,248 4.30 3.00
         Forfeited - - -
         Exercised - - -
Balance, December 31,
2008

637,248 $  4.42 2.60

         Granted -
         Forfeited -
         Exercised (352,349) 4.29
Balance, September 30,
2009(Unaudited)

284,899 $  4.59 1.78
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CHINA VALVES TECHNOLOGY, INC AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30, 2009
(Unaudited)

Note 12 � Shareholders' equity (Continued)

STOCK COMPENSATION

On June 29, 2009, the Company granted one of its independent
directors 5,000 shares of restricted common stock. The stock will vest
on January 1, 2011. The Company valued the fair value of the stock
grant at $22,500 based on the shares issued and the stock price of
$4.50 on June 29, 2009. The $22,500 stock compensation will be
amortized over a 2 year period. For the three and nine months ended
September 30, 2009, $9,375 was amortized and recorded as
compensation expense.

On June 29, 2009, the Company granted options to the Company�s
independent directors to purchase a total of 50,000 shares of common
stock. 27,500 options, expires 5 years from the date of grant, are
exercisable at a price of $6.00 per share; and 22,500 options, expires
4.4 years from the date of grant, are exercisable at a price of $8.00 per
share. On June 30, 2009, the Company granted options to the
Company�s officer to purchase a total of 50,000 shares of common
stock. This 50,000 options, expires 3.0 years from the date of grant,
are exercisable at a price of $6.00. The $173,828 fair value of the
100,000 stock options will be expensed ratably over the service period
of the respective personnel. The fair value of the stock options was
estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option-pricing
model with the following assumptions: exercise prices of $6.00 (for
27,500 stock options), $8.00(for 22,500 stock options) and $6.00 (for
50,000 stock options), expected life of options of 2 years( for 27,500
stock options), 2 years( for 22,500 stock options) and 3 years ( for
50,000 stock options) expected volatility of 107%, expected dividend
yield of 0%, and risk-free interest rate of 2.53%( for 27,500 stock
options), 2.31%( for 22,500 stock options) and 1.64%( for 50,000
stock options). For the three and nine months ended September 30,
2009, $20,730 was amortized and recorded as compensation expense.

The following is a summary of the stock options activity:

　 　 　Weighted- 　　 　 　
　 Number of 　 Average 　　Aggregate 　
　 Options 　 Exercise 　　 Intrinsic 　
　 Outstanding 　 Price 　　 Value 　
Balance, January 1, 2009 - $ - $ -　
Granted 100,000 　 6.45 　 　　
Forfeited - 　 - 　 -　　
Exercised 　 　 　 　 　　
Balance, September 30, 2009 100,000 $ 6.45 $ 96,100
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Following is a summary of the status of options outstanding at September 30, 2009:

Outstanding Options Exercisable Options

　 　
Average
Remaining Average 　

Average
Remaining

Exercise
Price Number

Contractual
Life

Exercise
Price Number

Contractual
Life

$6.00 77,500 2.25 $6.00 9,167 1.75
$8.00 22,500 1.75 - - -

Total 100,000 　 　 9,167 　
Note 13 � Geographic and product lines:

The Company sells valves, which are used by customers in various
industries. The production process, class of customer, selling practice
and distribution process are the same for all valves. The Company�s
chief operating decision-makers (i.e. chief executive officer and his
direct reports) review financial information presented on a
consolidated basis, accompanied by disaggregated information about
revenues by product lines for purposes of allocating resources and
evaluating financial performance. There are no segment managers
who are held accountable for operations, operating results and plans
for levels or components below the consolidated unit level. Based on
qualitative and quantitative criteria established by the accounting
standard regarding �Disclosures about Segments of an Enterprise and
Related Information�, the Company considers itself to be operating
within one reportable segment.

The Company does not have long-lived assets located in foreign
countries. In accordance with the enterprise-wide disclosure
requirements of the accounting standard, the Company's net revenue
from external customers by main product lines (based upon primary
markets defined by the Chinese Valve Industry Association) and by
geographic areas is as follows:
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CHINA VALVES TECHNOLOGY, INC AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30, 2009
(Unaudited)

Note 13 � Geographic and
product lines (Continued)

Three months Ended September
30,

2009 2008
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)

(in thousands)

Power Supply $  7,338 $  4,266
Petrochemical and Oil 5,471 5,014
Water Supply 9,443 4,901
Metallurgy 2,217 2,018
Other areas 3,422 5,243
Total sales revenue $  27,891 $  21,442

Nine months Ended June 30,
2009 2008

(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(in thousands)

Power Supply $  20,195 $  8,695
Petrochemical and Oil 11,725 10,157
Water Supply 23,382 9,729
Metallurgy 5,043 4,129
Other areas 9,664 13,498
Total sales revenue $  70,009 $  46,208

Three months ended September
30,

2009 2008
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)

(in thousands)
China $  26,973 $  19,944
International 918 1,498
Total sales revenue $  27,891 $  21,442

Nine months ended September
30,

2009 2008
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)

(in thousands)
China $  65,465 $  43,358
International 4,544 2,850
Total sales revenue $  70,009 $  46,208
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Note 14 � Subsequent event

On August 18, 2009, Henan Tonghai Fluid Equipment Co., Ltd., a
Chinese corporation (the "Subsidiary"), a wholly-owned subsidiary of
China Valves Technology, Inc. (the "Company"), prepaid $4.1 million
to acquire 100% of the outstanding equity interests of Yangzhou Rock
Valve Lock Technology Co., Ltd. ("Yangzhou Rock"), a company that
manufactures and distributes interlock valves, valve lock devices,
magnetic lock valves, and mechanical interlock machines that are
widely used by manufacturing companies in the petrochemical,
chemical, natural gas, thermal power station and metallurgy
industries, including SINOPEC and some of its subsidiaries. As of
September 30, 2009, our prepaid acquisition totaled $6.0 million.

As of November 7, 2009, the Company is still under the process of
asset valuation and therefore the acquisition is not included in the
financial statements ending September 30, 2009. Upon the completion
of the acquisition, the Company will own 100% of the outstanding
equity interests of Yangzhou Rock Valve Lock Technology Co., Ltd.
("Yangzhou Rock"),

The Company has performed an evaluation of subsequent events
through November 13, 2009, which is the date the financial statements
were issued.
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Item 2. Management�s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations

Forward-Looking Statements

This Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q contains statements that
constitute �forward looking statements� within the meaning of Section
21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and Section
27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended. The words �may,� �will,�
�expect,� �anticipate,� �continue,� �estimate,� �project,� �intend,� and similar
expressions are intended to identify forward-looking statements.
These statements appear in a number of places in this document and
include statements regarding the intent, belief or expectation of the
Company, its directors or its officers with respect to events,
conditions, and financial trends that may affect the Company�s future
plans of operations, business strategy, operating results, and financial
position. Persons reviewing this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q are
cautioned that any forward-looking statements are not guarantees of
future performance and are subject to risks and uncertainties and that
actual results may differ materially from those included within the
forward-looking statements as a result of various factors. These risks
and uncertainties include, but are not limited to, the factors mentioned
in the �Risk Factors� section of our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the
year ended December 31, 2008, and other risks mentioned in this
Form 10-Q or in our other reports filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission, or (the �SEC�), since the filing date of our
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2008.

Although these forward-looking statements, and any assumptions
upon which they are based, are made in good faith and reflect the
Company�s current judgment regarding the direction of its business,
actual results will almost always vary, sometimes materially, from any
estimates, predictions, projections, assumptions or other future
performance suggested herein. The Company undertakes no
responsibility or obligation to update publicly these forward-looking
statements, but may do so in the future in written or oral statements.
Investors should take note of any future statements made by or on
behalf of the Company.

The following discussion should be read in conjunction with our
unaudited consolidated financial statements and the related notes that
appear in Part I, Item 1, �Financial Statements,� of this Quarterly
Report. Our unaudited consolidated financial statements are stated in
United States Dollars and are prepared in accordance with United
States Generally Accepted Accounting Principles. The following
discussion and analysis covers the Company�s unaudited consolidated
results of operations for the three and nine  month periods ended
September 30, 2009 and 2008.

Use of Defined Terms
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Except as otherwise indicated by the context, references to:

�Casting Company� are references to Kaifeng High Pressure
Valve Steel Casting Limited Liabilities Company;

• 

�China Fluid Equipment� are references to �China Fluid
Equipment Holdings Limited� incorporated in Hong Kong;

• 

�China Valves,� the �Company,� �we,� �us� and �our� are references to
the combined business of China Valves Technology, Inc. and
its subsidiaries, China Fluid Equipment, Henan Tonghai
Fluid, High Pressure Valve, Zhendie Valve and Taizhou Taide
Valve;

• 

�China Valve Hong Kong� are references to �China Valve
Holdings Limited� incorporated in Hong Kong;

• 

�China Valve Samoa� are references to �China Valve Holdings
Limited� incorporated in Samoa;

• 

�China � and �PRC� are references to the People�s Republic of
China;

• 

�$� are references to the legal currency of the United States.• 

�Henan Tonghai Fluid� are references to Henan Tonghai Fluid
Equipment Co., Ltd.;

• 

�Henan Tonghai Valve� are references to Henan Tonghai Valve
Technology Co., Ltd.;

• 

�HKD� are references to the Hong Kong Dollar;• 

�High Pressure Valve� are references to Henan Kaifeng High
Pressure Valve Co., Ltd.;

• 

�Operating Subsidiaries� are references to Zhengdie Valve and
High Pressure Valve;

• 

�RMB� are references to Renminbi, the legal currency of China;• 

�Taizhou Taide Valve� are references to Taizhou Taide Valve
Co., Ltd.;

• 

�Taizhou Wote� are references to Taizhou Wote Valve Co.,
Ltd.;

• 

�Yangzhou Rock� are references to Yangzhou Rock Valve Lock
Technology Co., Ltd.; and

• 
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�Zhengdie Valve� are references to Zhengzhou City Zhengdie
Valve Co., Ltd.;

• 
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Overview of Our Business

Through our subsidiaries and certain commercial and contractual
relationships and arrangements with other Chinese companies, we
operate companies in China that develop, manufacture and distribute
high quality metal valves for a variety of different industries. We are
located in Kaifeng, Henan Province and conduct business throughout
China, Southeast Asia, the Middle-East and Europe. Our production
facility in Kaifeng has an area of approximately 110,000 square
meters. We produce over 700 models of valves and service numerous
industries, including the thermal power, water supply, municipal
construction, sewage disposal, oil and chemical, metallurgy, heat
power, and nuclear power industries. We are the leader in valve sales
for the thermal power and water supply industries, according to the
China Valves Industry Association.

Although the United States and Europe have been most affected by
the recent financial crisis, governments throughout the Asia-Pacific
region have also taken steps to stabilize their markets. To offset
slowing global growth, on November 5, 2008, at the State Council
meeting, Premier Wen Jiabao offered a RMB4 trillion ($586 billion)
stimulus package for the next two years and announced the
government would move to a proactive fiscal and a moderately
relaxed monetary policy.

Pursuant to the stimulus package, the Chinese government has
committed to launch more projects related to people�s livelihood and
infrastructure and decided to invest RMB100 billion ($14.49 billion)
in these projects, starting in the fourth quarter of 2008. (Source: China
Daily). The actions taken by the Chinese government should
significantly increase the demand for valve products which are
essential for infrastructure construction and will provide market
opportunities for the Company.

In addition, although the financial crisis has affected Chinese
enterprises that rely on overseas markets, China Valves has not been
materially affected as less than 10% of our revenue is generated from
exports and the relatively strong domestic market demand has
positioned us to continue to grow notwithstanding the current
financial crisis.

Management believes that the recent financial crisis in the US and
Europe should not have any materially negative impact on our
business, and management believes we will benefit from the stimulus
plan of the central government of China.

Acquisition of Yangzhou Rock and Commencement of Production at
New Facility

In August 2009, we made a prepayment to acquire 100% equity
ownership of Yangzhou Rock. Yangzhou Rock mainly designs,
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manufactures and distributes interlock valves, valve lock devices,
magnetic lock valves, and mechanical interlock machines that are
widely used by manufacturing companies in the petrochemical,
chemical, natural gas, thermal power station and metallurgy
industries. We expect to complete the acquisition before the end of the
year. We expect this acquisition to add approximately $2.9 million in
revenue and $1.0 million in net income for 2009 and approximately
$8.6 million in revenue and $3.0 million in net income for 2010.

On September 25, 2009, our new facility began its formal operation.
The new product ion faci l i ty  covers  13,000 square  meters
(approximately 140,000 square feet) at Kaifeng Valve will mainly
focus on the production of high-end large diameter metal valves used
in thermal  and nuclear  power plants ,  as  well  as  by the oi l
petrochemical and water supply and drainage industries. Additionally,
the new facility will produce high-quality forged steel valves for use
in supercritical thermal power generating units. We plan to reach
100% utilization by the end of 2009 on this new facility.

Industry Wide Trends that are Relevant to Our Business

The valve industry in China is large and growing as a result of growth
in urbanization and heavy industrialization throughout all of China.
Our industry is usually categorized into the following five major
segments depending on the end user of the particular valve products:
(1) oil; (2) power; (3) water supply; (4) petrochemical; and (5)
metallurgy. The oil segment and the power segment rank as the largest
segments accounting for 25% and 21%, respectively, followed by the
water supply, petrochemical and metallurgy segments with 14%, 12%,
and 8% market share, respectively. Miscellaneous and varied end
users of valve products account for the remaining 20% market share.

Sales of valve products in the Chinese domestic market reached $7.08
billion in 2007, an increase of 32% from the previous year, and the
Chinese market is expected to increase at an annual rate of more than
30% for the next 5 years according to the China Valve Industry
Association�s research. We believe that total domestic demand for
valves will reach $12 billion by 2010 and will be driven primarily by
the energy and water treatment segments with operations and projects
in urban centers. The stimulus package being implemented by the
Chinese government in response to the global economic crisis is
expected to emphasize basic infrastructure construction projects for
water, electricity, gas and heat in order to ensure continuous economic
development and meet the requirement of improving people�s living
standard. We believe that these initiatives should generate strong
demand for valves and promising business prospects for the valve
industry and our Company, especially as China�s valve market keeps
growing and developing. We intend to focus our efforts on utilizing
our tangible and intangible resources to expand and strengthen our
products and increase our market share in response to industry
demands.
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Third Quarter Financial Performance Highlights

During the third quarter of 2009, we focused primarily on developing,
manufacturing and selling high-quality metal valves for the electricity,
petroleum, chemical, water, gas and metallurgy industries in the PRC.

The following are some financial highlights for the third quarter of
2009:

Sales Revenue: Sales revenue increased $6.4 million, or 30%,
to $27.9 million for the third quarter of 2009 from $21.4
million for the same period last year.

• 

Gross Profit: Gross profit was $13.7 million, an increase of
60.1% from the third quarter of 2008, and gross margin was
49.1% for the third quarter of 2009, compared with 39.9% for
the same period in 2008.

• 

Net Income: Net income decreased $0.9 million, or 19.1%, to
$3.8 million for the third quarter of 2009, from $4.6 million
for the same period of last year. Our net income decreased as
a result of a non-cash charge for stock compensation expense
of $3.8 million.

• 

Fully diluted net income per share: Fully diluted net income
per share was $0.12 for the third quarter of 2009, compared
with $0.20 for the same period last year.

• 

Results of Operations

Results of operations for the three months ended September 30,
2009 as compared with the three months ended September 30,
2008.

The following table sets forth key components of our results of
operations for the periods indicated, in dollars and as a percentage of
sales revenue.

Three
Months
Ended

 September
30,

(unaudited)
%

2009 2008 $ Change Change
(In thousands, except percentages)

Statement of Operations data
Sales revenue $  27,891 21,442 6,449 30%
Cost of sales 14,192 12,885 1,307 10%
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Gross profit 13,699 8,557 5,142 60%
     Gross Margin 49.1% 39.9% 23%
Operating expenses:
Research and development costs 16 74 (58) (78)%
Sales and marketing expenses 1,739 1,308 431 33%
General and administrative expenses 5,542 1,514 4,028 266%

Total operating expenses 7,297 2,896 4,401 152 %

Operating income 6,402 5,661 741 13%
Finance costs, net 12 132 (120) 91%
Other expenses (income) 224 (621) 845 (136)%
Change in fair value of warrant liabilities (91) (35) 56 160%
Income taxes 2,503 1,544 959 62%

Net income $  3,754 4,641 (887) (19)%
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The following tables set forth our sales by valve type, in terms of
volume and revenues for the periods indicated.

Three Months Ended
September 30,

Volume, in tons 2009 2008

Gate valves 1,167 883
Check valves 355 467
Global valves 338 213
Safety valves 146 54
Butterfly valves 4,666 2,756
Ball valves 593 507
Vent valves 31 428
Other valves and accessories 1,491 1,347
Total, in tons 8,787 6,655

Three Months Ended
September 30,

2009 2008
Sales revenue (in thousands)

Gate valves $  7,914 $  5,494
Check valves 1,726 1,905
Global valves 1,753 1,092
Safety valves 489 264
Butterfly valves 11,520 6,414
Ball valves 1,589 1,311
Vent valves 94 1,302
Other valves and accessories 2,806 3,660
Total sales revenue $  27,891 $  21,442
The China Valve Industry Association divides the valve market into
five primary segments; (i) power; (ii) petrochemical; (iii) oil; (iv)
water supply; and (v) metallurgy. Our revenues in these markets are as
follows:

Three Months Ended
September 30,

2009 2008
(in thousands)

Power Supply $  7,338 $  4,266
Petrochemical and Oil 5,471 5,014
Water Supply 9,443 4,901
Metallurgy 2,217 2,018
Other areas 3,422 5,243
Total sales revenue $  27,891 $  21,442
Sales Revenue
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Our sales revenue for the three months ended September 30, 2009
amounted to $27.9 million, which is approximately $6.4 million or
30% more than that of the same period in 2008, where we had revenue
of $21.4 million. The increased sales revenue was attributable to (1)
increased demand for our products fueled by rapid industrialization
and manufacturing development in China, (2) our successful
marketing efforts, (3) retaining our existing customers and adding
additional large customers, (4) our expansion into the nuclear power
station valve market segment, and (5) volume increased for our
innovations on high temperature high pressure power station gate
valves and two-way metal sealing butterfly valves because the
Company has established its brand in China.

Cost of Sales

Cost of sales, which consist of raw materials, direct labor and
manufacturing overhead expenses, was $14.2 million for the three
month period ended September 30, 2009, an increase of $1.3 million
or 10%, as compared with $12.9 million for the three month period
ended September 30, 2008. Cost of sales as a percentage of total
revenues were 51% and 60% for the three month periods ended on
September 30, 2009 and 2008, respectively, with a decrease of
approximately 9%. The decrease was a result of decrease in cost of
raw material as steel prices continued to decrease into 2009 and
strengthened production cost control resulting in decreased production
costs.
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Sales and Marketing Expenses

Sales and marketing expenses, which consist primarily of sales
commission, advertising and promotion expenses, freight charges and
related compensation, were $1.7 million for the three month period
ended September 30, 2009, compared with $1.3 million for the period
ended September 30,  2008,  an increase of  $0.4 mil l ion or
approximately 33% due to the increase of sales volume in the period.

General and Administrative Expenses

Our general and administrative expenses, which consist primarily of
related salaries and benefits, business development, traveling
expenses, legal and professional expenses and depreciation, and bad
debt expenses, were $5.5 million for the three month period ended
September 30, 2009, compared with $1.5 million for the period ended
September 30, 2008, an increase of $4.0 million or approximately
266%. Included in these expenses is a non-cash compensation charge
of $3.8 million. Excluding the non-cash compensation expense, our
general and administrative expenses increased $0.2 million, 12%, to
$1.8 million for the period ended September 30, 2009 as compared to
$1.6 million for the period ended September 30, 2008. The increase is
primarily attributable to increase in salary expense as the Company
increased hiring to support the Company�s sales and administrative as
the Company expands. Additionally, travel expenses increased as well
due to increase in acquisition activities. Our auditing, accounting and
legal fees have increased as well.

Income from Operations

Income from operations was $6.4 million for the three month period
ended September 30, 2009, compared with $5.7 million for the period
ended September 30,  2008,  an increase of  $0.7 mil l ion or
approximately 13%. The increase was primarily attributable to the
increase in sales and gross margin in the current quarter offsetting by
the $3.8 million non-cash compensation expenses in the third quarter.
Income from operations excluding the non-cash compensation
expense for the three month period ended September 30, 2009 was
$10.2 million, compared with $5.7 million for the period ended
September 30, 2008, an increase of $4.5 million or approximately
78.9%. Please see below for non-GAAP income reconciliation. The
increase of 78.9% in income from operations is as a result of high
sales demand and reduced production costs.

Other income (expenses)

Total other expense, including change in fair value of warrant
liabilities, was $0.13 for the three month period ended September 30,
2009, compared with other income of $0.66 for the period ended
September 30, 2008. The financial expenses for the three month
period ended on September 30, 2009 and 2008 were $0.01 and $0.13
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respectively.

Income taxes

We incurred income taxes of $2.5 million for the three month period
ended September 30, 2009. This is an increase of $1.0 million or 62%
from the taxes we incurred in the 2008 period, which were $1.5
million. We incurred more taxes in the three months ended September
30, 2009 mostly because of the higher taxable income in the three
month period ended on September 30, 2009 compared to 2008.

Provision for Income Taxes

United States

We are subject to United States tax at a tax rate of 34%. No provision
for US federal income taxes has been made as we had no taxable
income in the United States for the reporting period.

Hong Kong

China Fluid Equipment was incorporated in Hong Kong and is not
subject to income taxes under the current laws of Hong Kong.

PRC

A company registered in China is subject to national and local income
taxes within China at the applicable tax rate on the taxable income as
reported in its PRC statutory financial statements in accordance with
relevant income tax laws. Under the Provisional Taxation Regulation
of the People�s Republic of China effective before January 1, 2008,
income tax was generally payable by enterprises at a rate of 33% of
their taxable income.

In 2007, China passed the New EIT Law and its implementing rules,
both of which became effective on January 1, 2008. The New EIT
Law significantly curtails tax incentives granted to foreign-invested
enterprises under the previous law. The New EIT Law, however, (i)
reduces the statutory rate of enterprise income tax from 33% to 25%,
(ii) permits companies to continue to enjoy their existing tax
incentives, adjusted by certain transitional phase-out rules, and (iii)
introduces new tax incentives, subject to various qualification criteria.
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Substantially all of our income may be derived from dividends we
receive from our PRC operating subsidiaries described above. The
New EIT Law and its implementing rules generally provide that a
10% withholding tax applies to China-sourced income derived by
non-resident enterprises for PRC enterprise income tax purposes. We
expect that such 10% withholding tax will apply to dividends paid to
us by our PRC subsidiaries, but this treatment will depend on our
status as a non-resident enterprise. For detailed discussion of PRC tax
issues related to resident enterprise status, see �Risk Factors � Risks
Related to Doing Business in China � Under the New EIT Law, we
may be classified as a �resident enterprise� of China. Such classification
will likely result in unfavorable tax consequences to us and our
non-PRC shareholders.�

Net Income

We earned net income of $3.8 million for the three month period
ended September 30, 2009. This is a decrease of $0.9 million or
approximately 19% from the period ended September 30, 2008 which
had a net income of $4.6 million. The primary factor for the decrease
is a non-cash compensation expense of $3.8 million in the current
quarter.

Non-GAAP Financial Measures

The Company�s management uses non-GAAP adjusted net income to
measure the performance of the Company�s business internally by
excluding non-cash expenses resulting from make good provisions
entered into in connection with previous private placement financing
transactions and non-cash income or expense related to changes in the
fair value of warrant liabilities. The Company�s management believes
that  the non-GAAP adjusted f inancial  measures  al low the
management to focus on managing business operating performance
because the measures reflect the essential operating activities of the
Company and provide a consistent method of comparison to historical
periods. The Company believes that providing the non-GAAP
measures that management uses internally to its investors is useful to
investors for a number of reasons. The non-GAAP measures provide a
consistent basis for investors to understand the Company's financial
performance in comparison to historical periods without variation of
non-recurring items and non-operating related charges. In addition, it
allows investors to evaluate the Company's performance using the
same methodology and information as that used by the management.
Non-GAAP measures are subject to inherent limitations because they
do not include all of the expenses included under GAAP and because
they involve the exercise of judgment of which charges are excluded
from the non-GAAP financial measure. However, the management
compensates for these limitations by providing the relevant disclosure
of the items excluded.
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The following table provides the non-GAAP financial measure and a
reconciliation of the non-GAAP measure to the GAAP income from
operations and net income.

Three Months Ended
September 30,

2009 2008
(in thousands) (in thousands)

Income From Operations $  6,402 $  5,661
   Add back (Deduct):
       Non-Cash Compensation Expenses 3,780 0
Adjusted Income From Operations $ 10,182 $  5,661

Net Income (Loss) $  3,754 $  4,641
   Add back (Deduct):
         Non-Cash Change in Warrant Liabilities (90) (35)
         Non-Cash Compensation Expenses $  3,780 $  -
Adjusted Net Income $  7,444 $  4,606

Diluted EPS $  0.12 $  0.20
   Add back (Deduct):
         Non-Cash Change in Warrant Liabilities 0.003 0.001
         Non-Cash Compensation Expenses $  0.12 $
Adjusted EPS $  0.24 $  0.20
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Results of operations for the nine months ended September 30,
2009 as compared with the nine months ended September 30,
2008.

The following table sets forth key components of our results of
operations for the periods indicated, in dollars and as a percentage of
sales revenue.

Nine Months
Ended

September 30,
(unaudited)
2009 2008 $ Change % Change
(In thousands, except percentages)

Statement of Operations data
Sales revenue $  70,009 46,208 23,801 52 %
Cost of sales 35,565 27,703 7,862 28 %
Gross profit 34,443 18,505 15,938 86 %
Gross Margin 49.2% 40.1% 23 %
Operating expenses:
Research and development costs 39 173 (134) (78)%
Sales and marketing expenses 4,654 3,171 1,483 47%
General and administrative expenses
(including non-cash stock compensation
expenses of $3.8 million in the third
quarter of 2009) 16,800 4,783 12,017 251 %
Total operating expenses 21,493 8,127 13,366 164 %
Operating income 12,950 10,378 2,572 25 %

Finance costs, net 138 424 (286) (67)%
Other expenses (income) (813) (908) (95) (11)%
Change in fair value of warrant liabilities 310 (35) (345) (985)%
Income taxes 6,381 2,825 3,556 126 %
Net income $  6,934 8,072 (1,138) (14)%
The following tables set forth our sales by valve type, in terms of
volume and revenues for the periods indicated.

Nine Months Ended
September 30,

Volume, in tons 2009 2008
Gate valves 3,126 2,172
Check valves 645 402
Global valves 1,077 941
Safety valves 346 183
Butterfly valves 11,280 6,391
Ball valves 1,528 994
Vent valves 39 632
Other valves and accessories 3,578 3,243

Total, in tons 21,619 14,958
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Nine Months Ended
September 30 ,

2009 2008
Sales revenue (in thousands)
Gate valves $  20,607 $  12,297
Check valves 5,038 3,639
Global valves 3,490 1,980
Safety valves 1,592 591
Butterfly valves 27,256 14,176
Ball valves 4,191 2,481
Vent valves 122 1,857
Other valves and accessories 7,713 9,187
Total sales revenue $  70,009 $  46,208
The China Valve Industry Association divides the valve market into
five primary segments; (i) power; (ii) petrochemical; (iii) oil; (iv)
water supply; and (v) metallurgy. Our revenues in these markets are as
follows:

Nine Months Ended
September 30,

2009 2008
(in thousands)

Power Supply $  20,195 $  8,695
Petrochemical and Oil 11,725 10,157
Water Supply 23,382 9,729
Metallurgy 5,043 4,129
Other areas 9,664 13,498
Total sales revenue $  70,009 $  46,208
Sales Revenue

Our sales revenue for the nine months ended September 30, 2009
amounted to $70.0 million, which is approximately $23.8 million or
52% more than that of the same period in 2008, where we had revenue
of $46.2 million. The increase was primarily attributed to (1)
increased demand for our products fueled by rapid industrialization
and manufacturing development in China, (2) our successful
marketing efforts, (3) retaining our existing customers and adding
additional large customers, (4) our expansion into the nuclear power
station valve market segment, and (5) volume increased for our
innovations on high temperature high pressure power station gate
valves and two-way metal sealing butterfly valves because the
Company has established its brand in China.

Cost of Sales

Cost of sales was $35.6 million for the nine month period ended
September 30, 2009, an increase of $7.9 million or 28%, as compared
with $27.7 million for the nine month period ended September 30,
2008. Cost of sales as a percentage of total revenues were 51% and
60% for the nine month periods ended on September 30, 2009 and
2008, respectively, with a decrease of approximately 9%. The
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decrease was a result of lower production costs caused by decreased
cost of raw materials, preferential product mix and strengthened
production cost control. Since the fourth quarter of 2008, the prices of
raw materials went down as a result of the global financial crisis. The
purchasing prices of our major raw materials, including the prices of
casting steel, weld puddle, disc and rotor decreased approximately
10-18% on average in 2009 as compared to the same period in 2008.

Sales and Marketing Expenses

Sales and marketing expenses were $4.7 million for the nine month
period ended September 30, 2009, compared with $3.2 million for the
period ended September 30, 2008, an increase of $1.5 million or
approximately 47% due to the increase of sales performance in the
period. In addition, with the implementation of the strengthened cost
control policy in 2009, the percentage increase of sales and marketing
expenses was less than that of sales.

General and Administrative Expenses

Our general and administrative expenses were $16.8 million for the
nine month period ended September 30, 2009, compared with $5.0
million for the period ended September 30, 2008, an increase of $11.9
million or approximately 240%. Included in these expenses is a
non-cash compensation charge of $11.3 million, as discussed above.
The remaining increase was primarily attributable to increases in our
auditing, accounting and legal fees related to our status as a public
reporting company. Additionally, our salary expense as well as we
increased hiring to support our sales and administrative as we
expands. Our travel expenses increased as well due to increase in
acquisition activities.
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Income from Operations

Income from operations was $13.0 million for the nine month period
ended September 30, 2009, compared with $10.4 million for the
period ended September 30, 2008, an increase of $2.6 million or
approximately 25%. The increase was primarily attributable to the
increase in sales and gross margin in the current quarter after
deducting a $11.3 million non-cash compensation expenses in the
third quarter. Income from operations excluding the non-cash
compensation expense for the nine month period ended September 30,
2009 was $24.2 million, compared with $10.4 million for the period
ended September 30, 2008, an increase of $13.8 million or
approximately 133%. See below for nine months ended non-GAAP
measures reconciliation.

Other income (expenses)

Total other income, including change in fair value of warrant
liabilities, was $0.50 million for the nine month period ended
September 30, 2009, compared with $0.94 million for the period
ended September 30, 2008. The financial expenses for the nine month
period ended on September 30, 2009 and 2008 were $0.14 million and
$0.42 million, respectively.

Income taxes

We incurred income taxes of $6.4 million for the nine month period
ended September 30, 2009. This is an increase of $3.6 million or
126% from the taxes we incurred in the 2008 period, which were $2.8
million. We incurred more taxes in the nine months ended September
30, 2009 mostly because of the higher taxable income in the nine
month period ended on September 30, 2009 compared to 2008.

Net Income

We had net income of $6.9 million for the nine month period ended
September 30,  2009.  This  is  a  decrease of  $1.1 mil l ion or
approximately 14% from the period ended September 30, 2008 which
had a net income of $8.1 million. The primary factor for the decrease
is a non-cash compensation expense of $11.3 million. Our Non-GAAP
income amounted $18.5 million for the nine months ended September
30, 2009, an increase of $10.5 million, 131%, from the corresponding
period in 2008. See below for GAAP income to non-GAAP income
reconciliation.

Non-GAAP Financial Measures

The Company�s management uses non-GAAP adjusted net income to
measure the performance of the Company�s business internally by
excluding non-cash expenses resulting from make good provisions
entered into in connection with previous private placement financing
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transactions and non-cash income or expense related to changes in the
fair value of warrant liabilities. The Company�s management believes
that  the non-GAAP adjusted f inancial  measure al lows the
management to focus on managing business operating performance
because the measure reflect the essential operating activities of the
Company and provide a consistent method of comparison to historical
periods. The Company believes that providing the non-GAAP
measures that management uses internally to its investors is useful to
investors for a number of reasons. The non-GAAP measures provide a
consistent basis for investors to understand the Company's financial
performance in comparison to historical periods without variation of
non-recurring items and non-operating related charges. In addition, it
allows investors to evaluate the Company's performance using the
same methodology and information as that used by the management.
Non-GAAP measures are subject to inherent limitations because they
do not include all of the expenses included under GAAP and because
they involve the exercise of judgment of which charges are excluded
from the non-GAAP financial measure. However, the management
compensates for these limitations by providing the relevant disclosure
of the items excluded.

The following table provides the non-GAAP financial measure and a
reconciliation of the non-GAAP measure to the GAAP income from
operations and net income.

Nine Months Ended
September 30

2009 2008
(In thousands) (In thousands)

Income From Operations $  12,950 10,378
   Add back (Deduct):
       Non-Cash Compensation Expenses 11,279 $  -
Adjusted Income From Operations $ 24,229 $  10,378
Net Income $  6,934 $  8,072
   Add back (Deduct):
         Non-Cash Change in Warrant Liabilities 310 (35)
         Non-Cash Compensation Expenses 11,279 -
Adjusted Net Income $  18,523 $  8,037
Diluted EPS $  0.23 $  0.38
   Add back (Deduct):
         Non-Cash Change in Warrant Liabilities $  0.01 $  -
         Non-Cash Compensation Expenses $  0.37 $  -
Adjusted EPS $  0.61 $  0.38
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Liquidity and Capital Resources

As of September 30, 2009, we had cash and cash equivalents of $16.7
million. The following table sets forth a summary of our cash flows
for the periods indicated:

Nine months
Ended September

30,
2009 2008
(in thousands)

Net cash provided by operating activities 20,094 2,293
Net cash used in investing activities (15,415) (4,919)
Net cash (used in) / provided by financing activities (4,357) 27,437
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents (80) 276
Net Increase in cash and cash equivalent 242 25,087
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of period 16,428 2,773
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of period 16,670 27,860
The Company currently generates its cash flow through operations
which it believes will be sufficient to sustain the current level of
operations for at least the next twelve months. In 2009, we continue to
work to develop new valves and expand our presence as the leader in
the development and manufacture of various valves.

Operating Activities

Net cash provided by operating activities was $20.1 million in the nine
months ended September 30, 2009, compared with net cash provided
by operating activities of $2.3 million in the same period in fiscal year
2008. The change of $17.8 million in operating activities was
primarily attributable to a decrease in accounts receivable and
advances on inventory purchase for the nine months ended September
30, 2009. The Company has improved the collection of accounts
receivables by implementing new sales commission policies in order
to strengthen its collection efforts and tightened its credit policy but
requiring 100% payments prior to delivery instead of selling on
account.

Investing Activities

Net cash used in investing activities increased to $15.4 million in the
nine months ended September 30, 2009, compared with $4.9 million
in the same period in fiscal year 2008. The net cash used in investing
activities during the period ended September 30, 2009, was primarily
used for the acquisition prepayment for Yangzhou Rock Valve Lock
Technology Co., Ltd and the purchase of additional machinery and
equipment and construction for the new factory in Kaifeng.

Financing Activities
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Net cash used by financing activities was $4.4 million in the nine
months ended September 30, 2009, compared with net cash obtained
from financing activities of $27.4 million in the same period in fiscal
year 2008. The decrease in net cash is attributable to the receipt of
$27,288,231 through the issuance of stock in a private placement
completed in August 2008.

As of September 30, 2009, there was no principal outstanding under
our credit facilities and lines of credit.

Capital Expenditures

The capital expenditures in the nine months ended September 30,
2009 and 2008 are set out as below. Our capital expenditures were
used primarily for plant construction and purchase of equipment to
expand our production capacity. The table below sets forth the
breakdown of our capital expenditures by use for the periods
indicated.

Nine months Ended
September 30,

2009 2008
(in thousands)

Construction costs $  4,088 $  1,443
Purchase of equipment $  4,548 $  1,800
Advance on equipment & construction fee -                1,486
Total capital expenditures $  8,636 $  4,729

- 33 -

Edgar Filing: PRO DEX INC - Form 8-K

49



We estimate that our total capital expenditures in fiscal year 2009 will
reach approximately $11.6 million: $8.6 million of which has been
used to complete construction and purchase new machinery and
equipment for the new plant in Kaifeng and equipment purchase in
other two subsidiaries, Zhengdie and Taizhou Taide. $1 million of
which will be used to upgrade Taizhou Taide�s production technology
and equipment, which we expect will increase Taizhou Taide�s existing
production capacity by 50%, and the $2.0 million be used for purchase
of new equipment (e.g., equipment for ultra-supercritical thermal
power projects) and production line upgrades for companies we plan
to acquire in 2009.

Obligations Under Material Contracts

The following table sets forth our contractual obligations and
commercial commitments as of September 30, 2009

Payment Due by Period
Less than More than

Total 1 Year 1-3 Years 3-5 Years  5 Years
(in thousands)

Short-term loans 4,140 4,140 - - -
Bills payable - - - - -
Long-term bank loans - - - -
Minimum Lease payments 1,115 343 772 -
Capital commitments 1,300 1,300 - - -
Future interest payment on short-term bank loans 218 218 - - -
Future interest payment on long-term bank loans - - - - -
Total 6,773 6,001 772 -
Make Good Escrow Agreement

In connection with the private placement, our major stockholder Bin
Li entered into an escrow agreement with the private placement
investors. Pursuant to the escrow agreement which was amended on
August 14, 2009, Bin Li, in place of Siping Fang, our CEO, agreed to
certain �make good� provisions. In the escrow agreement, we
established minimum net income thresholds of $10,500,000 for the
fiscal year ended December 31, 2008, $21,000,000 for the fiscal year
ended December 31, 2009 and $34,000,000 for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2010. Bin Li deposited a total of 12,583,032 shares into
escrow with Escrow LLC under the escrow agreement. If the 2008 net
income threshold is not achieved, then the escrow agent must deliver
the first tranche of 4,194,344 shares to the investors on a pro rata basis
(based upon the total number of shares purchased by the investors in
connection with the private placement transaction). If the 2009 net
income threshold is not achieved, then the escrow agent must deliver
the second tranche of 4,194,344 shares to the investors on a pro rata
basis and if the 2010 net income threshold is not achieved, the escrow
agent must deliver the second tranche of 4,194,344 shares to the
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investors on a pro rata basis. However, only those private placement
investors who remain our stockholders at the time the escrow shares
become deliverable are entitled to their pro rata portion of such
escrowed shares.

For the year ended December 31, 2008, our net income (prior to any
compensation charge related to release of the shares from escrow) was
$10,762,129 which met the earnings target for 2008 of net income of
$10,500,000. Accordingly, the Company released 4,194,344 shares
from the escrow to Bin Li and in turn to Siping Fang. We expect to
meet our 2009 earnings target; hence we expensed stock-based
compensation in the amount of $11.2 million for the months ended
September 30, 2009.

Other than the contractual obligations and commercial commitments
set forth above, we did not have any other long-term debt obligations,
capital commitments, purchase obligations or other long-term
liabilities as of September 30, 2009.
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Critical Accounting Policies

Our consolidated financial information has been prepared in
accordance with U.S. GAAP, which requires us to make judgments,
estimates and assumptions that affect (1) the reported amounts of our
assets and liabilities, (2) the disclosure of our contingent assets and
liabilities at the end of each fiscal period and (3) the reported amounts
of revenues and expenses during each fiscal period. We continually
evaluate these estimates based on our own historical experience,
knowledge and assessment of current business and other conditions,
our expectations regarding the future based on available information
and reasonable assumptions, which together form our basis for making
judgments about matters that are not readily apparent from other
sources. Since the use of estimates is an integral component of the
financial reporting process, our actual results could differ from those
estimates. Some of our accounting policies require a higher degree of
judgment than others in their application.

When reviewing our financial statements, the following should also be
considered: (1) our selection of critical accounting policies, (2) the
judgment and other uncertainties affecting the application of those
policies, and (3) the sensitivity of reported results to changes in
conditions and assumptions. We believe the following accounting
policies involve the most significant judgment and estimates used in
the preparation of our financial statements.

Revenue Recognition

The Company�s revenue recognition policies are in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles regarding revenue
recognition.. Sales revenue is recognized when all of the following
have occurred: (i) persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists, (ii)
delivery has occurred or services have been rendered, (iii) the price is
fixed or determinable, and (iv)the ability to collect is reasonably
assured. These criteria are generally satisfied at the time of shipment
when risk of loss and title passes to the customer.

The Company recognizes revenue when the goods are delivered and
title has passed. Sales revenue represents the invoiced value of goods,
net of a value-added tax (�VAT�). All of the Company�s products that
are sold in the PRC are subject to a Chinese value-added tax at a rate
of 17% of the gross sales price or at a rate approved by the Chinese
local government. This VAT may be offset by the VAT paid by the
Company on raw materials and other materials included in the cost of
producing their finished product.

The Company allows its customers to retain 5% to 10% of the contract
prices as retainage during the warranty period, usually 12 or 18
months, to guarantee product quality. Historically, the Company has
experienced very few actual warranty claims resulting in the Company
having to repair or exchange a defective product. Due to the
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infrequency and insignificant amount of warranty claims, the ability to
collect retainage is reasonably assured and is recognized at the time of
shipment.

Foreign Currency Translation and Other Comprehensive Income

The reporting currency of the Company is the US dollar. The
functional currency of our Chinese operating entities High Pressure
Valve and Zhengdie Valve is the Renminbi (RMB).

For the subsidiaries whose functional currencies are other than the US
dollar, all assets and liabilities accounts were translated at the
exchange rate on the balance sheet date; shareholders� equity is
translated at the historical rates and items in the income and cash flow
statements are translated at the average rate for the year. Because cash
flows are calculated based using the average translation rate, amounts
related to assets and liabilities reported on the statement of cash flows
will not necessarily agree with changes in the corresponding balances
on the balance sheet. Translation adjustments resulting from this
process are included in accumulated other comprehensive income in
the statement of shareholders� equity. The resulting translation gains
and losses that arise from exchange rate fluctuations on transactions
denominated in a currency other than the functional currency are
included in the results of operations as incurred.

Accumulated other comprehensive income in the consolidated
statement of shareholders� equity amounted to $6,142,970 and
$6,158,977 as of September 30, 2009 and December 31, 2008,
respectively. The balance sheet amounts with the exception of equity
at September 30, 2009 and December 31, 2008 were translated at 6.82
RMB and 6.83 RMB to $1.00 USD, respectively. The average
translation rates applied to income and cash flow statement amounts
for the six months ended September 30, 2009 and 2008 were 6.82
RMB and 6.97 RMB to $1.00, respectively.

Income Taxes

The Company follows the Accounting standard regarding �Accounting
for Income Taxes� that requires recognition of deferred income tax
liabilities and assets for the expected future tax consequences of
temporary differences between the income tax basis and financial
reporting basis of assets and liabilities. Provision for income taxes
consists of taxes currently due plus deferred taxes. Because the
Company had no operations within the United States there is no
provision for US income taxes and there are no deferred tax amounts
as of September 30, 2009 and 2008.

The charge for taxation is based on the results for the year as adjusted
for items which are non-assessable or disallowed. It is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
balance sheet date. Deferred tax is accounted for using the balance
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sheet liability method in respect of temporary differences arising from
differences between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities in the
financial statements and the corresponding tax basis used in the
computation of assessable tax profit. In principle, deferred tax
liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences, and
deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which deductible temporary
differences can be utilized.
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Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply to
the period when the asset is realized or the liability is settled. Deferred
tax is charged or credited in the income statement, except when it
relates to items credited or charged directly to equity, in which case
the deferred tax is also recorded in equity. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are offset when they relate to income taxes levied by the
same taxation authority and the Company intends to settle its current
tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

The Company adopted the accounting standard regarding accounting
for uncertainty in income taxes, as of January 1, 2007. A tax position
is recognized as a benefit only if it is �more likely than not� that the tax
position would be sustained in a tax examination, with a tax
examination being presumed to occur. The amount recognized is the
largest amount of tax benefit that is greater than 50% likely of being
realized on examination. For tax positions not meeting the �more likely
than not� test, no tax benefit is recorded. The adoption of this
accounting standard had no affect on the Company�s financial
statements.

Warranties

We typically warranty all of our products. It is the Company�s policy
to replace parts if they become defective within one year after
deployment at no additional charge. Historically, failure of product
parts due to materials or workmanship is rare. Therefore, at September
30, 2009 and September 30, 2008, the Company made no provision
for warranty claims for our products. Management continuously
evaluates the potential warranty obligation. Management will record
the expenses related to the warranty obligation if the estimated amount
becomes material at the time revenue is recorded.

Concentration Risks

The Company's operations are carried out in the PRC. Accordingly,
the Company's business, financial condition and results of operations
may be influenced by the political, economic and legal environment in
the PRC, and by the general state of the PRC's economy. The
Company 's  opera t ions  in  the  PRC are  subjec t  to  spec i f ic
considerations and significant risks not typically associated with
companies in North America and Western Europe. The Company's
results may be adversely affected by changes in governmental policies
with respect to laws and regulations, anti-inflationary measures,
currency conversion and remittance abroad, and rates and methods of
taxation, among other things.

Certain financial  instruments may subject  the Company to
concentration of credit risk. The Company maintains bank deposits
within state-owned banks within the PRC and Hong Kong. Balances
at financial institutions of state owned banks within the PRC are not
covered by insurance. As of September 30, 2009 and December 31,
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2008, the Company�s cash and restricted cash balances, totaling $15.3
million and $12.0 million respectively at those dates, were not covered
by insurance. The Company has not experienced any losses in such
accounts and believes it is not exposed to any significant risks on its
cash in bank accounts.

Five major suppliers represented approximately 27% and 32% of the
Company�s total purchases for the three months ended September 30,
2009 and 2008, respectively. For the nine months ended September
30, 2009 and 2008, five major suppliers represented approximately
18% and 28% respectively of the Company�s total purchases.

Accounts Receivable and Allowance For Doubtful Accounts

The Company�s business operations are conducted in the PRC. During
the normal course of business, the Company extends unsecured credit
to its customers by selling on various credit terms. Management
reviews its accounts receivable on a quarterly basis to determine if the
allowance for doubtful accounts is adequate. An estimate for doubtful
accounts is recorded when collection of the full amount is no longer
probable. The Company�s existing reserve is consistent with its
historical experience and considered adequate by the management.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The accounting standards regarding �Disclosures about Fair Value of
Financial Instruments� defines financial instruments and required fair
value disclosure of those instruments. This accounting standard
defines fair value, establishes a three-level valuation hierarchy for
disclosures of fair value measurement and enhances disclosure
requirements for fair value measures. Receivables, investments,
payables, short and long term debt and warrant liabilities qualified as
financial instruments. Management believes the carrying amounts of
receivables, payables and debt are a reasonable estimate of fair value
because of the short period of time between the origination of such
instruments, their expected realization, and if applicable, their stated
interest rate is equivalent to interest rates currently available. The
three levels are defined as follows:

Level 1 inputs to the valuation methodology are quoted prices
(unadjusted) for identical assets or liabilities in active markets.
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Level 2 inputs to the valuation methodology include quoted prices for
similar assets and liabilities in active markets, and inputs that are
observable for the assets or liability, either directly or indirectly, for
substantially the full term of the financial instruments. Level 3 inputs
to the valuation methodology are unobservable and significant to the
fair value.

The Company analyzes all financial instruments with features of both
liabilities and equity under the accounting standard regarding
�Accounting for Certain Financial Instruments with Characteristics of
Both Liabilities and Equity, the accounting standard regarding,
�Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities,� the
accounting standard regarding �Accounting for Derivative Financial
Instruments Indexed to, and Potentially Settled in, a Company�s Own
Stock� and the accounting standard regarding �Determining Whether an
Instrument (or Embedded Feature) Is Indexed to an Entity�s Own
Stock.� the accounting standard regarding �Accounting for Derivatives
and Hedging Activities� specifies that a contract that would otherwise
meet the definition of a derivative but is both (a) indexed to the
Company�s own stock and (b) classified in stockholders� equity in the
statement of financial position would not be considered a derivative
financial instrument. This standard provides a two-step model to be
applied in determining whether a financial instrument or an embedded
feature is indexed to an issuer�s own stock and thus able to qualify for
this accounting standard scope exception. All warrants issued by the
Company are denominated in U.S. dollars; because the Company�s
functional currency is the Renminbi, the Company accounts for these
warrants as derivative instrument liabilities and marks them to market
each period. Because there is no quoted or observable market price for
the warrants, the Company used level 3 inputs for its valuation
methodology.

The Company invested in China Perfect Machinery Industry Co., Ltd.
in 1996 and Kaifeng Commercial Bank in 1997. There is no quoted or
observable market price for these investments; therefore, the
Company used level 3 inputs for its valuation methodology. Based on
its proportionate share of the underlying book value of the investees,
the Company believes the fair value of the investments is at least
equal to the original cost. The determination of the fair value was
based on the capital investment that the Company contributed. There
has been no change in the carrying value since inception, other than
the effects of translating the balances to US dollars.

A discussion of the valuation technique used to measure the fair value
of the warrant liabilities is provided in Note 12.

Fair Value Measurements at September 30, 2009
using Fair Value HierarchyCarrying Value as of

September 30, 2009 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Investments $  764,515 $          764,515
Warrant liabilities $  478,422 $        478,422
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Except for the warrant liability and investments, the Company did not
identify any other asset and liability that are measured at fair value on
a recurring basis in accordance with the accounting standard.

Long Term Investment

The Company invested in China Perfect Machinery Industry Co., Ltd.
in 1996 and Kaifeng Commercial Bank in 1997. The Company owns
approximately 0.14% of China Perfect Machinery Industry Co. Ltd.
and approximately 4.01% of Kaifeng Commercial Bank. The
Company does not have the ability to exercise control over the
investee companies and the investments have been recorded under the
cost method.

The Company periodically evaluates potential impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
of the investments may not be recoverable. For investments carried at
cost, the Company recognizes impairment of long term investments in
the event that the carrying value of the investment exceeds our
proportionate share of the net book value of the investee. As of
September 30, 2009, management believes no impairment charge is
necessary.

Goodwill

We test goodwill for impairment annually and whenever events or
circumstances make it more likely than not that impairment may have
occurred, such as a significant adverse change in the business climate
or a decision to sell or dispose of all or a portion of a reporting unit.
Our operating subsidiaries are considered separate reporting units for
purposes of this evaluation. Determining whether an impairment has
occurred requires valuation of the respective reporting unit, which we
estimate using a discounted cash flow method. In applying this
methodology, we rely on a number of factors, including actual
operating results, future business plans, economic projections and
market data.

We test other identified intangible assets with defined useful lives and
subject to amortization by comparing the carrying amount to the sum
of undiscounted cash flows expected to be generated by the asset. We
test any other intangible assets with indefinite lives annually for
impairment using a fair value method such as discounted cash flows.
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Stock Based Compensation

The Company applies the accounting standard regarding accounting
for stock-based compensation, which defines a fair-value-based
method of accounting for stock based employee compensation and
transactions in which an entity issues its equity instruments to acquire
goods and services from non-employees. Stock compensation for
stock granted to non-employees has been determined in accordance
with this accounting standard and the accounting standard regarding,
"Accounting for Equity Instruments that are issued to Other than
Employees for Acquiring, or in Conjunction with Selling Goods or
Services", as the fair value of the consideration received or the fair
value of equity instruments issued, whichever is more reliably
measured. This accounting standard allows the �simplified� method to
determine the term of employee options when other information is not
available. For the nine months ended September 30, 2009, stock based
compensation amounted to $11,279,336 and $0, respectively.

Business Combination

Effective January 1, 2009, the Company adopted the accounting
standard regarding business combinations. This standard retains the
fundamental requirements that the acquisition method of accounting
(which this standard called the purchase method) be used for all
business combinations and for an acquirer to be identified for each
business combination. This standard requires an acquirer to recognize
the assets acquired, the liabilities assumed, and any noncontrolling
interest in the acquiree at the acquisition date, measured at their fair
values as of that date, with limited exceptions. This replaces the old
accounting standard�s cost-allocation process, which required the cost
of an acquisition to be allocated to the individual assets acquired and
liabilities assumed based on their estimated fair values.

On April 17, 2009, a subsidiary of the Company acquired 100% of the
tangible assets of Taizhou Wote Valve Co., Ltd. for a total cash
consideration of $3 million. The acquisition was accounted as a
business combination in accordance to the terms of the purchase
agreement. Assets acquired included inventories of $1.0 million,
buildings of $1.4 million, equipments of $0.4 million, and land use
rights of $0.4 million. The Company allocated the purchase price
based on the fair value of the assets acquired and recorded a gain of
approximately $252,000 in non-operating income in the current
period.

New Accounting Pronouncements

In January 2009, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued an
accounting standard amending the Impairment Guidance of
recognition of interest income and impairment on purchased and
retained beneficial interests in securitized financial assets. The newly
issued accounting standard changes the impairment model included to
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be more consistent with the impairment model of another accounting
standard for accounting for securities. The new accounting standard
remove its exclusive reliance on �market participant� estimates of future
cash flows used in determining fair value. Changing the cash flows
used to analyze other-than-temporary impairment from the �market
participant� view to a holder�s estimate of whether there has been a
�probable� adverse change in estimated cash flows allows companies to
a p p l y  r e a s o n a b l e  j u d gm e n t  i n  a s s e s s i n g  w h e t h e r  a n
other-than-temporary impairment has occurred. The adoption of this
FASB Staff Positions did not have a material impact the Company�s
consolidated financial statements.

In April 2009, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued three
related accounting standards: (i) Recognition of Presentation of
Other-Than-Temporary Impairments. (ii) Interim Disclosures about
Fair Value of Financial Instruments and (iii) Determining the Fair
Value When the Volume and Level of Activity for the Asset or
Liability Have Significantly Decreased and Identifying Transactions
That Are Not Orderly which are effective for interim and annual
reporting periods ending after June 15, 2009. The first accounting
s t a n d a r d  m o d i f i e s  t h e  r e q u i r em e n t  f o r  r e c o g n i z i n g
other-than-temporary impairments, changes the existing impairment
model, and modifies the presentation and frequency of related
disclosures. The second related accounting standard requires
disclosures about fair value of financial instruments for interim
reporting periods as well as in annual financial statements. The third
related accounting standard requires new disclosures regarding the
categories of fair value instruments, as well as the inputs and valuation
techniques utilized to determine fair value and any changes to the
inputs and valuation techniques during the period. The adoption of
these accounting standards did not have a material impact the
Company�s consolidated financial statements.

In June 2009, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued an
accounting standard amending the accounting and disclosure
requirements for transfers of financial assets. This accounting standard
requires entities to provide more information regarding sales of
securitized financial assets and similar transactions, particularly if the
entity has continuing exposure to the risks related to transferred
financial assets. In addition, it eliminates the concept of a �qualifying
special-purpose entity� and clarifies the determination of whether a
transferor and all of the entities included in the transferor�s financial
statements being presented have surrendered control over transferred
financial assets. This accounting standard requires that a transferor
recognize and initially measure at fair value all assets obtained
(including a transferor�s beneficial interest) and liabilities incurred as a
result of a transfer of financial assets accounted for as a sale.
Enhanced disclosures are required to provide financial statement users
with greater transparency about transfers of financial assets and a
transferor�s continuing involvement with transferred financial assets.
This accounting standard will not have an impact on the Company�s
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financial statements.
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In June 2009, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued an
accounting standard amending the accounting and disclosure
requirements for the consolidation of variable interest entities (�VIEs�).
This standard modifies how a company determines when an entity that
is insufficiently capitalized or is not controlled through voting (or
similar r ights)  should be consolidated.  I t  clarif ies that  the
determination of whether a company is required to consolidate an
entity is based on, among other things, an entity�s purpose and design
and a company�s ability to direct the activities of the entity that most
significantly impact the entity�s economic performance. An ongoing
reassessment is required of whether a company is the primary
beneficiary of a variable interest entity. Further, it also requires
additional disclosures about a company�s involvement in variable
interest entities and any significant changes in risk exposure due to
that involvement. This accounting standard will be effective as of the
beginning of the annual reporting period commencing after November
15, 2009 and will be adopted by the Company in the first quarter of
2010. This accounting standard will not have an impact on the
Company�s financial statements.

In August 2009, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued an
Accounting Standards Update (�ASU�) regarding measuring liabilities
at fair value. This ASU provides additional guidance clarifying the
measurement of liabilities at fair value in circumstances in which a
quoted price in an active market for the identical liability is not
available; under those circumstances, a reporting entity is required to
measure fair value using one or more of valuation techniques, as
defined. This ASU is effective for the first reporting period, including
interim periods, beginning after the issuance of this ASU. The
Company is currently assessing the impact of this ASU on its
consolidated financial statements.

In October 2009, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued an
Accounting Standards Update (�ASU�) regarding accounting for
own-share lending arrangements in contemplation of convertible debt
issuance or other financing. This ASU requires that at the date of
issuance of the shares in a share-lending arrangement entered into in
contemplation of a convertible debt offering or other financing, the
shares issued shall be measured at fair value and be recognized as an
issuance cost, with an offset to additional paid-in capital. Further,
loaned shares are excluded from basic and diluted earnings per share
unless default of the share-lending arrangement occurs, at which time
the loaned shares would be included in the basic and diluted
earnings-per-share calculation. This ASU is effective for fiscal years
beginning on or after December 15, 2009, and interim periods within
those fiscal years for arrangements outstanding as of the beginning of
those fiscal years. The Company is currently assessing the impact of
this ASU on its consolidated financial statements.

Off-Balance Sheet Transactions
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We do not have any off-balance sheet arrangements.

Seasonality

Our operating results and operating cash flows historically have not
been subject to seasonal variations. This pattern may change,
however, as a result of new market opportunities or new product
introductions.

Item 3.

Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

Not applicable.

Item 4.

Controls and Procedures.

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Our management, with the participation of our chief executive officer
and chief financial officer, Messrs. Siping Fang and Ms. Ichi Shih
respectively, evaluated the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and
procedures. The term �disclosure controls and procedures,� as defined in
Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Exchange Act, means
controls and other procedures of a company that are designed to
ensure that information required to be disclosed by a company in the
reports, such as this report, that it files or submits under the Exchange
Act is recorded, processed, summarized and reported, within the time
periods specified in the SEC�s rules and forms. Disclosure controls and
procedures include, without limitation, controls and procedures
designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed by a
company in the reports that it files or submits under the Exchange Act
is accumulated and communicated to the company�s management,
including its principal executive and principal financial officers, as
appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.
Management recognizes that any controls and procedures, no matter
how well designed and operated, can provide only reasonable
assurance of achieving their objectives and management necessarily
applies its judgment in evaluating the cost-benefit relationship of
possible controls and procedures. Based on that evaluation, Mr. Fang
and Ms. Shih concluded that despite improvements in areas of
previously identified weakness in internal control over financial
reporting identified (described below), our disclosure controls and
procedures were not effective as of September 30, 2009.
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Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting

The Company�s management is focused on compliance with the
requirements under Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act. The
relevant section of the Act requires the management of smaller
reporting companies with equity securities listing in the U.S. securities
market to issue report and representations as to the internal control
over financial reporting. The Company anticipates that it will be fully
compliant with Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 by the
required date for smaller reporting companies and it is currently in the
process of improving and rectifying its internal control systems in
order to be compliant with Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act.

The Company has continuously refined the policies and standards for
the control environment based on the risk control framework
established in the Internal Control Integrated Framework issued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission
(the �COSO�). In the past few months, the Company has: standardized
control procedures for monitoring the financial reporting and period
end financial closing procedures at the subsidiary and group level and
upgraded the business performance review processes and controls;
expanded accounting manuals to clearly document key controls and
processes for preparing consolidated financial statements in
accordance with applicable accounting standards; hired additional
accounting professionals with experience in financial reporting and
familiarity with international accounting practices and increased
technical training for the finance and accounting personnel in respect
of relevant accounting standards; established and implemented the
code of ethics for senior officers and employees, company-wide
anti-fraud policies and whistle blowing mechanisms; enhanced
internal controls over subsidiaries by assessing the effectiveness of
internal controls at subsidiary-level based on our enterprise risk
assessment results  and preliminarily formulated long term
implementation plan on internal control.

The Company had completed the documentation and implementation
of internal control framework in June 2009.

PART II � OTHER INFORMATION

Item 1.

Legal Proceedings.

From time to time, we may become involved in various lawsuits and
legal proceedings which arise in the ordinary course of business. 
However, litigation is subject to inherent uncertainties, and an adverse
result in these or other matters may arise from time to time that may
harm our business. We are currently not aware of any such legal
proceedings or claims that we believe will have a material adverse
affect on our business, financial condition or operating results.
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Item 1A.

Risk Factors

None.

Item 2.

Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds

None.

Item 3.

Defaults Upon Senior Securities

None.

Item 4.

Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders.

None.

Item 5.

Other Information.

None.

Item 6.

Exhibits.

EXHIBITS.

31.1* Certification of Principal Executive Officer filed pursuant to
Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

31.2* Certification of Principal Financial Officer filed pursuant to
Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

32.1* Certification of Principal Executive Officer furnished pursuant
to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906
of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

32.2* Certification of Principal Financial Officer furnished pursuant
to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906
of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

*Filed herewith.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934,
the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by
the undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

DATED: November 16, 2009

CHINA VALVES TECHNOLOGY, INC.

/s/ Ichi
Shih                                                                                             
Ichi Shih
Chief Financial Officer (Principal Financial Officer)
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 EXHIBIT INDEX

31.1* Certification of Principal Executive Officer filed pursuant to
Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

31.2* Certification of Principal Financial Officer filed pursuant to
Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

32.1*
Certification of Principal Executive Officer furnished pursuant
to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906
of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

32.2*
Certification of Principal Financial Officer furnished pursuant
to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906
of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

*Filed herewith.
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